ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COVM TTEE ON EDUCATI ON
March 2, 2004
11: 06 a. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Carl Gatto, Chair
Representative Paul Seaton, Vice Chair
Representati ve Dan (Ogg

Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Kelly Wl f
Representative Les Gara

VEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Mary Kapsner
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 425

"An Act relating to funding for school districts operating
secondary school boarding progranms, to funding for schoo
districts from which boarding students cone, and to inoperative
school districts; and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 333
"An Act relating to an endowrent for public education; and
providing for an effective date."”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 405

"An Act relating to reports on school and school district
performance; and relating to accountability of public schools
and school districts; and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 425

SHORT TITLE: BOARDI NG SCHOOL FUNDI NG
SPONSOR( S):  REPRESENTATI VE(S) COGHI LL

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -1- March 2, 2004



02/ 04/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 04/ 04 (H EDU, HES, FIN

03/ 02/ 04 (H EDU AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124
BILL: HB 333

SHORT TI TLE: PUBLI C SCHOOL ENDOWENT
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) OGG COGH LL, HOLM

01/ 12/ 04 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 2/ 04

01/ 12/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 12/ 04 (H EDU, HES, FIN

01/ 27/ 04 (H EDU AT 11:00 AM CAPI TOL 124

01/ 27/ 04 (H) <Bi || Hearing Postponed>

03/ 02/ 04 (H EDU AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124
BILL: HB 405

SHORT TITLE: SCHOOL PERFORMANCE DESI GNATI ON/ REPORT
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) GATTO

01/ 28/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 28/ 04 (H EDU, HES

02/ 17/ 04 (H EDU AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 17/ 04 (H <Bi || Hearing Postponed>

03/ 02/ 04 (H EDU AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE JOHN COGHI LL

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 425 and answered
questions fromthe nenbers.

HARRY VWHI TE, Pri nci pal

Proj ect Education Residential School

Gal ena School District

Gal ena, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 425 and answered
guestions fromthe nenbers.

EDDI E JEANS, Fi nance Manager

School Finance and Facilities Section

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 425 and answered questions
fromthe nenbers.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 2- March 2, 2004



JOSEPH BEEDLE

Vice President for Finance

Uni versity of Al aska Systens

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 333.

BOB LCEFFLER, Director

D vision of Mning, Land, and Water

Departnent of Natural Resources

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 333 and answered questions
fromthe nenbers.

LES MORSE, Director

Assessnent and Accountability

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 405.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-12, SIDE A
Nunmber 0001

CHAI R CARL GATTO called the House Special Conmmttee on Education
nmeeting to order at 11:06 a.m Representatives Gatto, Seaton,
W son, g, and Gara present at the call to order.
Representative WIf arrived as the neeting was in progress.

CHAIR GATTO told the nenbers that today is the 100th birthday of
Dr. Seuss and Gastineau School has invited the nenbers to a
celebration in his honor. A free book wll given to each child
that attends, he added.

HB 425- BOARDI NG SCHOOL FUNDI NG

[ Cont ai ns di scussi on of HB 390.]

CHAI R GATTO announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 425, "An Act relating to funding for school
districts operating secondary school boarding prograns, to
funding for school districts from which boarding students cone,
and to inoperative school districts; and providing for an
effective date.”

Nunmber 0186

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 3- March 2, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE JOHN COGHI LL, Al aska State Legislature, testified
as sponsor of HB 425 and answered questions from the nenbers
He told the nenbers that he represents the North Pole area, and
grew up in Nenana. The Nenana School Board was instrunental in
bringing the boarding school issue to his attention, he said

Representative Coghill explained that HB 425 provi des boarding
schools with stipend benefits beyond what is already allowed
under some circunstances. This bill would expand currently

operating boarding schools' ability to collect stipends and one
round trip transportation cost for each student who attends
boardi ng schools. A sunset provision is provided in the bill to
ensure that there is a review of the pilot program in five
years, he added.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL told the menbers that he struggled wth
the thought that [provisions in this bill] could inpact a
comunity in such a way that it could lose its school. For
exanple, by allowng students to attend one of the boarding
schools it could nmean the nunber of student [in a particular

comunity] could fall below the required 10 students. He told
the nmenbers that the hold harm ess |anguage was inserted in the
bill to address that issue. He pointed out that it would be

necessary for the school district to show that the student(s)
woul d benefit from classes that would not otherw se be offered
in a small conmmunity, but could be obtained at a boarding
school . If this were the case, the school district would be
held harmless for the loss of a student while he/she were
attendi ng a boardi ng school .

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL told the nenbers that there wll be a
cost of $1, 406, 000. The fiscal note is based on the present
nunber of boardi ng school students, he added.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL told the nenbers that Eddie Jeans from
the Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent nentioned to

him that Section 1 could be renoved from the bill because it
does not apply to the 10-student rule. Representati ve Coghi l
enphasized that if a student |eaves a boarding school, the

boar di ng school |oses funding for that student.
Number 0578

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL expl ai ned that boarding schools have an
interesting history in Alaska. He said he was raised in a smal

village that had a small Episcopalian boarding school. Many
Native people he knew were negatively affected by mandatory
noves to boarding schools both inside and outside of Al aska.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -4- March 2, 2004



Some of those students had very bad experiences, he added. The
schools were not well run. As a result, there was a real stigna
attached to boarding schools in Alaska, he expl ai ned.
Representative Coghill told the nenbers that he believes there
is a greater respect for the [Native] culture and the needs of
students. He said that sonme of these schools help students grow
who mght otherwse find thenselves in tough circunstances
within a village. He said he was inpressed by the way sone of
the students have inproved their education and changed nmany

things in their lives to a nore healthy way of |iving. The
students have done this while remaining culturally relevant and
academ cally appropriate, Representative Coghill added.

Nunber 0680

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL told the commttee that there is a fisca
note attached. He explained that he has been talking wth
menbers [of the House Finance Commttee] about ways to finance
this pilot program He added that he does not have a specific
revenue source identified to pay for this project yet, but is
wor ki ng on one.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he believes this is a good thing to
do. He has seen the successes from the Nenana and Gal ena
boar di ng school s. Some students have told him that wthout the
educati onal opportunity offered them at these schools they npst
assuredly would have failed school due to peer pressure and
academ c defi ciencies. He acknow edged that this bill does not
fix every problem but it is one niche that needs to be
seriously considered.

CHAIR GATTO asked if there is a state definition for boarding

school s. He noted that sone Iliterature refers to these
educati onal opportunities as "residential prograns” and others
refer to it as "boarding school prograns.” He suggested that

the term residential program be used instead of boarding schoo
because boardi ng school does have a historical stigma for sone
Al askans.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL agreed that there may be a stigma in
referring to boarding schools, but there is a difference in
adm nistration between a residential program and a boarding
school . For exanple, Nenana, which is a honme rule community,
has put its own noney into the existing school. The comunity
has opened its public school to students of a residential center
which has its own program but the community supplies the
school roons and teachers. He explained that Nenana did that to

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 5- March 2, 2004



i ncrease the student count, because the comunity had a big
building in a dimnishing town. Whereas, in Galena the schoo
is a residential boarding school.

Nunmber 0935

CHAI R GATTO announced for the record that Representative WIf
has j oi ned the neeti ng.

Nunmber 0940

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON pointed to Section 2 [page 1, line 14 and
page 2, line 1 and 2] where it says:

(a) A district that began operating a secondary
boardi ng program before January 1, 2004, is eligible
to receive reinbursenent for the costs incurred by the
district in operating that program

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON commented that if this is a good nodel to
follow, then why would sonme districts not qualify [because its
school was not in operation on January 1, 2004].

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL responded that there is a practical

reason. He said if this program works he does not know if the
state can afford to allow these schools to flourish throughout
the state. Representative Coghill commented that he believes

these prograns work, but thinks it is best to offer a pilot
program to those existing boarding schools for a tine, and then
take another |ook at the prograns. He enphasized that a good
revi ew needs to be done before making a sweeping policy call.

CHAIR GATTO comented that there are laws of unintended
consequences. He asked for clarification that students who
attend boarding schools wll still be counted as present in the
districts where the students cone from

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL posed the follow ng hypothetical exanple
to clarify how the hold harm ess provision wrks. A school has
exactly 10 students and a student chooses to go to a boarding
school because there is an educational or social problem that
would warrant the student attending a boarding school. The
school district he | eaves would |lose funding for the next year;
however, this |egislation would provide that the school would be
hel d harml ess from closure due to the drop in student enroll nent
[and the ten-student rule]. The provision does not nean that
the school would get funding for a student who is not there, he

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 6- March 2, 2004



enphasi zed. The Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent
may Wi sh to speak to this point, he comrented.

Nunber 1157

CHAI R GATTO posed a worst-case scenario of a school that only
has ten kids, five of which go to boarding school, and five are

left. Then $250,000 is [still available] to run the school. He
explained that he is using figures he got from the situation in
Central, where the community only had eight students, it

advertised for two additional kids to attend school there; two
additional students did enroll and Central received $250,000 in
funding. Chair Gatto said his concern is that a community could
get down to just two kids and the state would still have to put
up the noney to run the entire school.

Number 1205

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL responded that the Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent does have discretion to allow or
di sallow that kind of situation to occur.

CHAIR GATTO went on to say in the extrene of this scenario, a
not her, who would normally honme school her kids, could enroll
them in the school, becone the teacher, and get $250,000 to
educate her children.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL told the nenbers that it is his hope that

a system wll remain in place where a student who could excel
and cannot get a science or mathematics class is able to go to a
boardi ng school such as the those he has nentioned today. | f

there were a famly wth four students [from a small comunity
and all of them chose to go to boarding school], he said he
believes the district would be in trouble.

Nunmber 1346

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to Section 2 and asked if there
is language that clarifies that reinbursenment is only nade for
students who live outside of the district where he/she attends
boardi ng school. He pointed to page 3 [V. Budgets and All owabl e
Costs, A WTH N DISTRICT] of the backup materials, where it
says:

For students attending school wthin their hone
district, costs (i ncl udi ng i ndi rect Cost s) of
pl acenent supervi si on, counsel i ng and pr ogram

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -7- March 2, 2004



admnistration are the responsibility of the school
district.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if a student cones from outside the
district would costs, stipends, and airfare be rei nbursed.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL replied that he would like the departnent
to respond to that question. He said he would be curious how
the departnent and district would handle a situation where a
student who lives in Nenana wants to attend the boarding schoo

because for exanple, there are problens within the famly.

Number 1491

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON posed a hypothetical question involving
t he Kenai Peninsula School District. He asked how rei nbursenent
woul d work for a student who lives in Port G aham and who want ed
to attend a boarding school in Seldovia if one existed there
He commented that as he reads Section 2, it appears the district
woul d get the per student allocation plus the costs and airfare
rei mbursenent. However, according to page three of the backup
materials, it appears that the district would not get any of the
costs paid, he said. Representative Seaton asked if that point
shoul d be clarified in the statute.

REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL replied that he hopes the departnent
woul d be given discretion in determning reinbursenent.

Number 1540

CHAIR GATTO posed a hypothetical question to Representative
Coghill where a student who lives in Nenana, wants to go to the
boardi ng school in G@Galena. Is there a restriction that a

student nust attend the boarding school closest to the student's
residence, or may the student attend any boardi ng school he/she
chooses, he asked.

CHAIR GATTO comented that the conmittee has always been
supportive of offering alternatives in education, as well as,
making what is in place work as well as it can. It may be
inportant to offer alternatives to sone kids, he suggested.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL replied that there are many vari abl es and

for that reason he believes the statute should be broad, and the
application should allow the [departnment] discretion.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 8- March 2, 2004



CHAIR GATTO told the nenbers that he just received a report
entitled "Certificate of Information Submtted on Boarding Hone
Reports” in which it says that some students do not have daily
access to a school with the appropriate grade |evel. He said
that while the language is a bit confusing, the point is well
made that a student could be in a community that has a boarding
school, but not have the appropriate grade l|level available to
the student which in turn could require the student to go
sonmewher e el se.

Number 1691

REPRESENTATI VE  SEATON commented t hat many districts are
experiencing a problem of declining enrollnent and therefore,
| ess funding. He asked if any consideration has been given to
the thought that this bill may provide an incentive to
"poachi ng" [students].

REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL replied that there is a balance. He
explained that the communities of Nenana and Gal ena have put up
a significant amount of their own resources to establish better
educati onal opportunities. He commented that those two schools
| ook for people who can nmake the nost progress, whether it is at
the top or bottom of the educational spectrum Representati ve

Coghill told the menbers that in Nenana's case many of the
students who attend there are troubled, regardless of whether
the student was from Anchorage or a small village. Nenana' s

intent is for students to excel both academically and socially.
He said he could not speak to the other schools' policies.

Nunber 1854

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if transportation and stipend costs
are the only expenses not currently being paid to boarding
school s.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL replied that the costs covered are one

round trip ticket for transportation and a stipend for room and
board.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked what the average cost of these
expenses are.

Number 1890

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL responded that the costs may vary, but an
average woul d be about $450 [per nonth].

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 9- March 2, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GARA commented that he would be nobre synpathetic
for this option being available to students who are having a
hard time finding an educational environment to thrive in. He
asked if there is a way to refrain from spending this kind of
noney on kids who are doing well. He said he does not see any
| anguage in the bill that would differentiate between students.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL replied that he is inclined to agree wth
Representative Gara. However, in thinking it through, he said,
there could be a student who wants the opportunity to thrive in
a smaller school. He said he does not believe this option
should be limted to only those who are deficient in social or
academ c attri butes. He told the nenbers that in Nenana and
Galena there is a strong cultural and academ c enphasis.
Representative Coghill stated that he believes it should be an
option available for students who wish to attend, and would be
unconfortable inserting |anguage that requires a student to be
in great need in order to be enrolled. Representati ve Coghil
poi nted out that some of the better achievers who are doing wel
in Nenana, for exanple, did not have the educational opportunity
in their honme community.

Number 2033

REPRESENTATI VE GARA suggested establishing a certificate of need
procedure that the |ocal school official would have to conplete
to substantiate that the student would do better at a boarding
school mght be nerited. He said he has a problemw th students
that are going to a boarding school for the luxury of choice
Representative Gara pointed out that $500 per nonth for an
ei ght-nonth school year is $4,000 that he believes will cone out
of public education [funding] sonmewhere el se.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL commented that he would defer to the
school districts who have had students apply for this option.
He said he believes the [boarding] schools have had nore
applicants apply than the schools are able accept. The schools
are pretty much funding these prograns on their own dine. He
commented that if he understands it correctly, the schools do
receive sonme travel noney  now. Representative Coghill
reiterated that he believes the qualification process would be
better spoken to by the districts who have already been through
this process.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO pointed out that wth the Jlaws of
uni nt ended consequences there can be good news and bad news. He

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -10- March 2, 2004



said, for instance, that there could be a student who is bright
and wants to go to a boarding school, so all he has to do is
fail the tests, and that would qualify him to attend the
boar di ng school .

CHAI R GATTO commented that there is legislation [HB 390] which
deals with the length of a school year and the flexibility in
al lowing students to attend classes seven days in a row if the
school desires that kind of schedule. He told the nenbers when
he talked with Nenana and Galena boarding schools there was
tremendous support for that idea. It would enable the students
to finish their classes in a shorter period of tinme, while at
the sanme tinme allow the school to offer another group of

students the opportunity to enroll in the program He added
that it is possible to find sonme economes in using flexible
scheduling. The bill that would allow this flexibility has not

passed the | egislature yet, he added.

CHAIR GATTO referred to Representative Gara's concerns that this

bill mght create a situation where it is robbing Peter to pay
Paul .  The school districts m ght object, he said.
Number 2211

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL rem nded the nenbers that there are
133,000 students in public education, and this bill would affect
around 340 students. This is only a niche, he enphasized. He
told the nenbers that many of the questions raised in the
hearing today would be addressed through the adm ssions process
and the menorandum of agreenent that the Departnent of Education
and Early Devel opnent woul d provide. He said he believes that
the districts who have been involved in this process and the
department shoul d have significant input.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON said she shares sonme of the concerns
expressed with respect to funding losses in school districts.
Hi storically kids were sent to boarding schools on a routine
basis, but it was decided that it had a negative inpact. The

state then provided high schools for small conmmunities so
students could attend in their communities. However, M.
Edgecunbe renmai ned a boarding school. There is the thought that
sone students do benefit from a boarding school environment. It

may be that the student is renoved from a bad situation.
Representative WIlson told the nenbers that nmany students are
sent to M. Edgecunbe by parents who want a better education for
their children, not because their children are in trouble. She
shared that she teaches classes for seniors in all the high

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -11- March 2, 2004



schools in her district, and she cannot believe the difference
in the knowl edge students at M. Edgecunmbe possess over those of
the other high schools. These kids are in a contained
environment on canpus, and the level of supervision and
instruction is high.

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON comented that she has talked wth
[adm nistrators] from Nenana and Gal ena who shared the desire to
continue to operate boarding schools. She told the nenbers that

this is really a policy question. The state already has a
stated-run boarding school and it wor ks. She  asked
Representative Coghill what the capacity is for each of the
school s.

Nunber 2487

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL replied that he believes Nenana has about
75 students; however he will confirm that nunber. He suggested
that the Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent nmay have
the head count in boarding schools. He said when considering
this issue as a policy call, it is inportant to note that these

comunities have provided some of the resources. There nay have
been the desire to get state funding, but he would not call the
school s’ notives into questions because it is clear a need was

i dentifi ed. He pointed out that in Nenana's case there was a
| arge building that was enpty and the community saw a need that
could be filled. Nenana also started a cyber school and used

sonre of the funds to support the boarding school program
however, once the district found out, the admnistrator was
fired and the district made sone serious corrections.
Representative Coghill told the menbers that there is no doubt
that a boarding school environment gives those involved a
conradery and a sense of mssion to achi eve academ c excel |l ence.
Nenana is commtted to its school and has searched for funding
through local, state, federal, and nonprofit organizations. He
commented that he believes Galena is the sane way, but could not
comment on the other boarding schools in Al aska.

Number 2671

HARRY WHI TE, Principal, Project Education Residential School
(PERS), Galena School District, testified in support of HB 425
and answered questions from the nenbers. He told the nenbers
that PERS allows students an opportunity to get an education
that is not available in the students' hone conmunity. Over 200
students applied last year and only 83 were enrolled due to
space constraints. He explained that the school does not

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -12- March 2, 2004



"poach" students; students apply [without solicitation]. The
school has been successful in that every student who attended
| ast year opted to return. There is also a high rate of
attendance by siblings. M. Wite explained that PERS is a
grade 9 through 12 school. Every student who attends one or two
years, regardless of his/her home community, achieves higher
gr ades. One exanple of progress that has been nade is in a
class that started with a 7 percent passage of |anguage arts and
4 percent passage of math, and through PERS the class
achi evenent |level has been raised to 58 percent passage of
| anguage arts and 52 percent passage of math, he said.

Number 2763

MR WHTE told the commttee that upon graduation from high
school, the school also offers vocational certification in
mechani cs, culinary arts, and aviation courses for a solo pilot
license. Al of these vocational certifications can be foll owed
up with classes at University of Alaska Anchorage for further
certifications and degrees. He comrented that six students just
graduated last week from the school's cosnetology course wth
national certification. Mny of these courses are the students

13th and 14th year of educati on.

MR. WHI TE shared that 85 percent of the PERS graduates have gone
on to full time enploynent or sonme form of postsecondary
educati on. He said he believes that is an excellent record
because nost of the students cone fromthe villages.

MR. WHI TE expl ained that the cost of providing this education is
over $26,000 per student. The community and soft noney provides
over $20,000 per student for the education the students are
provi ded. He enphasized that PERS is already educating the
students, raising scores, getting students into college, and
provi di ng vocational training so that students may get | obs.

Number 2850

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON asked if the capacity of the boarding
school is 83 students.

MR. WHI TE responded that there is nore space available in the
dorm facility, but the comunity can only afford a certain
nunber of students. He explained that the classroom capacity is
between 70 and 75 students; however, PERS shuttles students back
and forth to the city school three mles away to provide for
nore students. In response to Representative WIlson's inquiry

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -13- March 2, 2004



M. Wite clarified that the boarding school capacity is nore
than 100, but the school capacity is about 70 to 75 students.

Nunber 2932

CHAIR GATTO asked if the school <can only accommpbdate 75
students, but the dormtory can hold 100, why would PERS bus
[kids to classes].

MR. WHI TE responded that busing is used to nmake the difference
between the 75 and 100 students and still provide the education
that is requested.

CHAI R GATTO asked for further clarification.

MR. VWH TE explained that all 83 students live in the dormtory.
The school has arranged the class schedule to accommpbdate [the
shortage in classroom space]. The school buses students to [the
public school] to offer additional elective classes Iike
woodwor ki ng. The scheduling arrangenent allows PERS to provide
an education to nore students in one year, he added.

Number 2960

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON posed a hypothetical question where PERS
had 100 students in the dormtory, while the classroons’
capacity was 75. He asked if he is correct in projecting that
in order to nake that arrangenent work PERS woul d be adding 25
students to the | ocal school.

TAPE 04-12, SIDE B

MR WHI TE explained that the students obtain all of their
acadenm c classes at PERS and the elective classes at the other
| ocati on.

Nunber 2948

EDDI E JEANS, Finance Manager, School Finance and Facilities
Secti on, Depar t ment of Education and Early Devel opnent,
testified on HB 425 and answered questions from the nmenbers. He
said he believes that the nenbers are trying to ascertain how
the nunmber of students that can be housed at the boarding
school, could be educated. He explained that in Galena there is
the Galena public school and also the residential program where
facilities that were fornerly the old air force base are being
used. He asked M. White to confirmthat this is correct.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -14- March 2, 2004



MR WH TE responded that M. Jeans is correct. The Gal ena
public school is three mles away from the [forner] air force
base where the Gal ena Residential School is |ocated.

MR. JEANS expl ained that the Galena Residential School is using
a variety of facilities for the educational conponent of these
student s. The capacity of the residential conponent is 100
students. He said that what he believes M. Wite is saying is
that even though PERS is only serving 83 students; the capacity
for residential students is 100. Due to financial constraints
Galena is not noving toward the 100-student capacity. He told
the nmenbers it is the intention of PERS to continue to share the
educational prograns with the Galena city school.

Nunmber 2877

CHAIR GATTO asked for additional clarification on residential
students' attendance.

MR. JEANS explained that both schools are part of the Gty of
Gal ena's school district, even though the prograns are discussed
as i ndependent units.

CHAIR GATTO asked how many students are in the Galena school
district.

MR. JEANS replied that he is not sure, but would provide that
information for the comnmttee.

MR. VWH TE responded that he is not sure either because the
district has a kindergarten through grade 12 facility.

CHAIR GATTO asked if the city school 1is larger than the
residential school.

MR  WH TE responded that the <city school 1is larger, but
enphasi zed that it is not just a high school. He explained that
only 10 or 11 students are bused over to the city school to
recei ve vocational electives. There are not a |arge nunber of
students going to the city school from the residential school
he stated.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA prefaced his question by saying that he

m ssed the first portion of M. Wite's testinony, and asked if
he understood <correctly that M. \Wite said running the

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -15- March 2, 2004



residential school puts the school in the red by about $20, 000
per student.

Nunmber 2822
MR. VWHI TE responded that is correct. It costs PERS $26, 000 per
student to run the residential school. This cost covers room

board, staffing, travel, and utilities.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked how nuch the school is conpensated by
the state.

MR. WH TE replied that the school gets about $5, 700 per student.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked M. Jeans if this bill would provide
that extra [$20, 000] per student.

MR. JEANS replied that it would not provide $20,000 per student.
He said that based on the departnent's fiscal note the schoo
woul d generate $551,000 for 91 students, or approximately $6, 000
per student. He explained that even though Galena's boarding
school was originally started as a boarding school, the district
receives state funding for students that attend school in the
boarding program but the funding is just the foundation
f undi ng. The school attenpted to use state funds that were
generated through other prograns to hel p supplenent the boarding
school program However, the charter school |egislation was
anended a year or two later which said that state funds could
not be used to support a boarding program This |egislation put
the school in a "catch-22" position where the school started
under one premse and then the rules changed. He told the
menbers that Galena is using other resources and |local funds to
support their program

Nunber 2641

MR. JEANS explained that the other piece of the dilemma for
boardi ng schools is that if a student does not have daily access
to a secondary program then the state will provide a boarding
sti pend. In Galena's case, there are eight students who cone
from St. George out in the Pribilof Islands. St. George only
offers a K-8 program out there so the state pays Galena a
nonthly sti pend. M. Jeans explained that this |egislation
woul d provide for the state to pay nonthly stipends to all kids
in Galena for this pilot program and then see what the inpacts
are. He commented that this program would al so apply to Nenana.
Nenana currently has less than five students who qualify for the

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -16- March 2, 2004



boarding stipend because those kids do not have access |[to
grades 9 through 12] in their home communities. M. Jeans
summarized that all this legislation does is say that if a
student wants to attend a residential program then the state
woul d pay a boarding stipend while the student attended there.

Nunmber 2605

MR. JEANS enphasized that one should not conpare Galena to
Nenana to M. Edgecunbe because each program is extrenely

different. A student may elect to go to M. Edgecunbe because
he/ she wants to get ready for college and it is known that M.
Edgecunbe prepares students for college. Anot her student nmay

want to go to Galena because of the [nationally accredited]
cosnetol ogy course or pilot training where there is a flight
sinmulator. The prograns are vastly different, but what is being
di scussed is providing sonme assistance in covering sonme of the
residential costs for those kids who choose to go to these
boar di ng prograns.

CHAI R GATTO asked if a boarding school is taking in $6,000 [per
student] and the cost is $20,000, how does it stay in business.

MR. VWH TE responded that the additional funds are obtained from
soft-noney grants, local noney, and other funds from the
district.

CHAI R GATTO responded that in other words, it is costing Gal ena
nore noney to run the program than what is being provided by the
state; and the district is wusing other noney to pay the
di fference.

MR. WHI TE agreed that noney is being taken from other areas to
mai ntain the program The nmain benefit is that Galena is seeing
students succeeding that had very little opportunity to succeed.
The question that is starting to be asked year by year is how
| ong can Gal ena continue to do this w thout additional help.

CHAIR GATTO stated that Galena School District is a benevol ent
associ ation whose primary goal is to watch kids succeed and is

willing to put up its own noney no matter where the kids cone
from
Number 2433

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -17- March 2, 2004



MR. VWHI TE responded that Galena's prinmary mssion is to educate
students and if the chairman w shes to place "benevolent” upon
it, then it will gladly be accepted.

Nunmber 2428

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked how | ong Galena has been offering a
boar di ng school program

MR VWHTE told the commttee that this is the school's seventh
year.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked what the norm is for students who
graduate from Gal ena.

MR. VWH TE expl ai ned that the cosnetol ogy school is just getting
off the ground, and there were six students who graduated from

cosnetology this year. Only four of the six graduated from
Gal ena, the other two graduated from other high schools, he
added. He reiterated that the 13th and 14th [grade] course

of ferings, which are funded by grants, have just started so he
does not have a percent avail abl e.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON asked if state funds for the boarding
school program are now or could in the future be redirected to
support the vocational program al so.

MR. VWH TE responded that funds that cone from the state for the
residential program would be used to appropriately fund the
acadeni ¢ prograns.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked under t he current pr ogram
approximately how nuch noney is being spent per student to
provi de an education for the eight kids [from St. George] who go
to the Gal ena residential school

MR. JEANS commented that this proposed legislation mrrors the
current program The dollar amounts reflected on the fiscal
note, of a $577 nonthly stipend is what the state is paying for
each of those eight children.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said that if this legislation passes, Gal ena
will get roughly $6,000 for boarding expenses and $6,000 for the
base student allocation. That would still leave Galena
responsi ble for $14,000 for each student. He asked M. White if
this kind of appropriation would allow Galena to continue to
operate for the long term

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 18- March 2, 2004



Nunmber 2258

MR VWH TE replied that Galena has enough noney to run another
year or so. If the school were to receive the additional nopney
it would nmean Galena could go on |onger and possibly increase
t he nunber of students enroll ed.

Nunber 2235

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON asked M. Jeans how nuch funding is
provided to M. Edgecunbe per student.

MR. JEANS replied that he would have to get that information for
her . He added that M. Edgecunbe's residential conponent is
built into the state budget because it is a state-run school.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said she would like to know for conparison
pur poses.

MR.  JEANS acknowl edged that the residential schools being
di scussed today are costing the state less than what M.
Edgecunbe is costing the state.

CHAI R GATTO stated that the cost per student at M. Edgecunbe is
approximately $20,000 and one round trip [transportation
al l omance from the student's hone] each year. He said the true
cost of running a residential school is close to that figure.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said she would |like to see these schools
funded in a way that would ensure they stay open for nore than
just two years. It would be nice to know if these prograns are
wor ki ng.

CHAI R GATTO comrented that M. Wite told the nenbers that the
school al so has soft-noney through grants.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON asked M. Jeans if the Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent has had on-site reviews of the
educati onal prograns and are the prograns [accredited].

Number 2100
MR. JEANS replied that the departnent has not done a field audit
of these schools; however, he is sure that Representative WIson

has seen the brochures. The Lower - Kuskokwi m Bet hel area has a
boardi ng school that brings kids in from the outlying

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -19- March 2, 2004



conmuni ties. There is also the None-Beltz School which he is
not quite sure of because it is not the typical 180-day program
It is a two-week program of intensive courses where kids are
brought in from the Bering Straits School D strict and then the
kids go back hone. He said he does not believe that school
would fit in this mx, but wll wait for direction from the
| egi sl ature on that.

Nunber 2049

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked M. Wite to elaborate on the soft-
noney funds that he referred to. Are honme school funds used at
PERS, he asked.

MR. WHI TE responded that PERS is part of the Galena City School
District of which there are three progranms, the city school,
PERS, and Interior Distance Education of Al aska (IDEA). He told
the nmenbers that PERS has a grant witer who is working on a
grant now that should provide sone assi stance.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked if sonme of the funds [which are
subsi di zing PERS] are fromthe home school program

MR. WHI TE responded that nobst of the additional noney need to

run PERS has been comng from soft noney. For exanple, the
resiliency grant is a very large grant PERS gets for retention
of students into a residential program He said that PERS

success ratio will nmean that the grant will awarded to them

again this year. That is the largest grant PERS gets and is a
big part of the funding, he said.

Nunber 1926

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Jeans to address the |anguage in
the bill [on page 1, line 14 and page 2, line 1] which specifies
that a district would have to have been operating a secondary
boar di ng school programprior to January 1, 2004.

MR. JEANS said it is his wunderstanding that Representative
Coghill wanted to create a pilot program for those districts
that are currently running residential boarding schools. He
added that is why the attachnent to the fiscal note shows
districts and communities which the departnent has identified

that have progranms in place. M. Jeans added that is also why
he nentioned the None-Beltz's program differences and asked for
| egi sl ative direction. M. Jeans assured the commttee that

sone of the details could be spelled out in regulations and

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 20- March 2, 2004



woul d not have to be witten into statute. He reiterated that
the purpose for the language is that Representative Coghil
wanted this to be a pilot program which would be eval uated after
a nunber of years.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON commented that as he reads the statutory
| anguage it does not distinguish where the students cone from
however, in the copy of the nmenorandum of agreenment it says that
if the students are comng fromwthin the district, the student
will not receive any noney. So this would be an incentive to
attract students from outside of the district and no incentive
to provide the services to students within the district, he
added.

Nunber 1793

MR. JEANS replied that the nmenorandum of understanding that
Representative Seaton is looking at is the current agreenent

based on current regulations. It says if a student does not
have daily access to a secondary program then the student
qualifies for a boarding honme stipend. For exanple, in the

Pribilof Islands the school district is operating a Kindergarten
to eighth grade programin St. George. He told the nenbers that
the high school students in that district could go anywhere in
the state, and the state would pay boarding stipends. M. Jeans
commented that years ago kids from this district use to go to
school in the Matanuska-Susitna Borough School District. He
explained that the mjority of students that are attending
boarding school in Bethel are students from the Lower Kuskokw m
regi on. Under the current program these students wll not
qualify [for a boarding stipend] for two reasons. First, the
students are fromwthin the district, and second, all of their
communities are providing Kindergarten through 12th grade
progr ans.

MR.  JEANS further explained that this proposal would allow
students who wsh a nore diverse course offering [to have that
opportunity], and to assist those districts in bringing kids in
and get sone assistance with a boarding school program

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Jeans to clarify that the intent
of this bill is to allow students, whether from wthin or
outside of a school district, to enroll in a residential program
and have a boarding stipend and other costs [paid for by the
state].

MR. JEANS agreed that is his understanding of the bill.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -21- March 2, 2004



Nunmber 1665

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON sumrarized that currently the |law says
that the only students who would qualify [to attend residential
prograns] are those who live in comunities that do not offer
9th through 12th grades in their district. This bill would
allow any student to apply to a boarding school program
Representative WIson posed a hypothetical question that if
parents in Wangell believed their child was running with the
wong group of Kkids, could that student be enrolled in a
boar di ng school program

Nunmber 1643

MR. JEANS responded that could happen. He offered an exanple
that there could be a student that wants to be a cosnetol ogi st
and that training is probably not available in Wangell.

Nunmber 1628

CHAI R GATTO announced that HB 425 would be held in conmttee.

HB 333- PUBLI C SCHOOL ENDOWENT

Number 1590

CHAI R GATTO announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 333, "An Act relating to an endowrent for public
education; and providing for an effective date."

Nunmber 1583

REPRESENTATI VE OGG noved to adopt CS HB 333, 23-LS0991\U as the
wor ki ng docunent .

CHAIR GATTO noted that Representatives WIson and Coghill are
co-sponsors of the bill

REPRESENTATI VE DAN OGG, Al aska State Legislature, testified as
sponsor of CS HB 333. He told the nenbers that he represents
the Kodiak Island and north end of the Lake and Peninsula
Borough and is a former regent of the University of Al aska for
ei ght and one-half years.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG explained that this bill really has to do
with how education is funded and provided sonme historical

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -22- March 2, 2004



per specti ve. In 1634 the Massachusetts colony granted the

community of Dorchester, Thonpson's |Island. Four years later
the rents, fees, and royalties from that island were dedicated
to a free school. In 1670, the Plymouth colony followed suit

and enacted the first ordinance in Anmerica which said that
profits should annually accrue to the colony for fishing with
nets in Cape Cod for mackerel, bass, or herring, and those funds
woul d be dedicated for a free school. The following year a
teacher cane to the colony by the nanme of Thomas Hinkley and the
colony provided those fishing profits [for education purposes].
At the sane tinme, the colony dedicated the profits and benefits
fromtwo former-Indian tribal lands to run the school.

Number 1384

REPRESENTATI VE OGG went on to say that in 1861 the Mral Act was
passed which said that Anmerica felt higher education was so
inportant that it authorized the giving of land in western
states to setup | and-grant coll eges.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG said when Al aska becane a territory it cane
under this act, he said. In 1917 the University of Al aska
Fai r banks becane Alaska's land grant college. As such, the
|l ands in Alaska were available to them The one catch with the
federal governnment was that the land had to be surveyed before
the land could be obtained. During the territorial days and up
until statehood the anmount of |ands that were surveyed and the
sections in them that were dedicated to schools or colleges
ended up being a total of 115,000 acres. During statehood
di scussions there was always the intent to get the land to the
University of Alaska to fulfill the land grant. In 1959 when
the statehood conpact was signed, the land grant was |eft out.
There was sone discussion because Alaska was unique and the
federal governnent gave the state 103 mllion acres with the
t hought that perhaps the [university land grant] should cone out
of this 103 mllion acres.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG told the nenbers that during Governor Egan's

adm nistration there was a bill that passed the legislature to
give the University of Alaska a land grant, and it was vetoed
The land grant issue renained dormant for some tine, until the

1990s when two regents for the University of Alaska, Lew
Wllianms, Jr. and Joseph Henry, worked hard for a land grant.
Representative Oyg conmented that he worked with them He told
the nenbers that three land grant bills nmade it through the
| egi sl ature during that time, and each one was vetoed.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -23- March 2, 2004



Nunber 1128

REPRESENTATI VE OGG went on to say that in 2000, the last Iand
grant bill, SB 7, was vetoed. It was a historic tinme because
the legislature over-rode the governor's veto. However, the
governor declared that the over-ride of his veto was not valid
because the legislature did not have enough votes as he deened
the legislation to be an appropriation which requires a three-
quarter vote to over-ride his veto. In January of this year,
the Al aska Suprene Court ruled that was not the case. The bill
was not an appropriation and the legislature was only required
to have the two-thirds vote so the vote [in over riding the
governor's veto] was upheld. However, what the judge said was
that because there was a conservation group who had joined the
| aw suit at the |lower court and had put forth the question as to
whether this bill was an unconstitutional dedication of state
funds, the Alaska Suprene Court said it would not decide that
i ssue because it had not been brought up to them so that case
went back to the superior court where it sits today to decide
that issue. SB 7 gave an actual physical grant of land to the

university of 250,000 acres. The bill lays out a schematic
about how the wuniversity would work with the Departnent of
Nat ural Resources to pick these [ ands. Wen the lands are

selected it nust then cone back to the |l egislature for approval.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG pointed out that the reason for this is that
when a specific grant of land is selected then it wll "gore
soneone's ox", he said. Wien the bills canme through in the
1990s the mners were very upset that potential mning |ands
m ght end up in the hands of the university. At other tinmes it
would be the tinber industry that would be upset, he said.
Representative (Ogg added that sonetines it would be supporters
of the university that did not believe the university should be
involved in developing land and it was their desire the I|and
stay in a pristine state.

Nunmber 1046

REPRESENTATI VE OGG reiterated that the university does not have
its full land grant because it is tied up in court. He
explained that HB 333 is a little different from other
| egi slation that has been brought forward. He expl ai ned that
this bill creates a tenancy in comon with the State of Al aska.
He posed the follow ng hypothetical exanple to denonstrate how a
tenancy in conmon worKks. He said imgine that a grandfather

deci ded that he wanted his grandchildren to have sone |and and
willed it to all of his grandchildren equally. For exanple, if

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 24- March 2, 2004



there were eight grandchildren, each grandchild owned one-eighth
of that land, but there is no way for that grandchild to go out
on the land and say, this piece of land is mne, because the
|l and is owned in comon. If the grandfather knew that he had a
coupl e of grandchildren who were spendthrifts and did not want
them to manage the land, he then arranged for one grandchild to
manage the land and the other grandchildren would benefit
equally from the |and. Representative Ogg stated that is what
this bill does.

Number 0995

REPRESENTATI VE OGG told the nmenbers that this bill would provide
for the land to stay under the managenent of the State of Al aska
and the university would end up owning one percent of all state
| and as a tenancy in conmon. There is a caveat that when | and
is given in the exanple provided, that the non-nanaging party
acquires the right over the managi ng tenant, the nanagi ng tenant
has a fiduciary duty to be a good steward of the property. He
explained that in this bill that fiduciary duties does not
apply. The reason that |anguage was inserted is to ensure that
the University of Alaska is not |ooking over the shoul der of the
Departnent of Natural Resources and trying to nake decisions on
t he managenent of the land. The idea is to get the land to the
university as a tenancy in conmon and have the nonies flow to
the university, he said.

Number 0884

REPRESENTATI VE OGG pointed out that parts of the bill set out
what funds would actually flow to the university, because sone
m ght think the university would get one percent of the oil and
gas, mning, or land sales revenues. This |anguage ensures that
the university does not get revenues from the existing flow it
woul d only receive revenues from new | eases or new sal es. Thi s
woul d not inpact the state fromits current revenue sources.

Nunmber 0846

REPRESENTATI VE OGG said the |anguage in Section 1 and 2 is just
enabling | anguage. Section 3 is a new section which establishes
the fund. Section 4 sets out powers and duties for
conmm ssioners and how the fund will function.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG told the nenbers that Sec. 14.40.499, on page

4, says how the fund would be adm nistered and establishes the
boar d.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -25- March 2, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE OGG said that Sec. 14.40.501 sets out the duties
and powers of the fund. He pointed out that on page 5 there is
a new section [Sec. 14.40.505] that says how funding flows from
state | ands.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG told the nmenbers that in Sec. 14.40.507 there
is language which conveys the land to the wuniversity as a
tenancy i n common.

Number 0704

REPRESENTATIVE OGG pointed to a change in wording between
version U and the original bill which is on page 4, Iine 10. He
explained that for nmany years there was a "President" of the
board of regents and has since been changed to "Chair" of the
board of regents. Version U changes that wording to "chair" of
t he board, he reiterated.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG told the nenbers that there was a suggestion
from the University of Alaska to "use the percentage of narket
val ue" so that the noney that comes out of the fund flows at a
rate of 5 percent on an annual basis which is delineated in Sec.
14. 40. 503.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG said Sec. 14.40.507, page 5, lines 16 through
19, provides |anguage that renoves the fiduciary responsibility
so the state can manage the | and uni npeded.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG summarized that there nay be sone slight
changes in language to ensure the bill reflects the intent he
has described to the nenbers.

Number 0550

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked to be directed to the |anguage that
provides for one percent of state land to be transferred as
tenants in common

REPRESENTATI VE OGG directed Representative Gara to page 5, line
13. He commented that the |anguage is inarticulate and wll
have to be redrafted.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked how the one percent of state |and
conpares to the 250,000 acres in the last |and grant.

Number 0462

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 26- March 2, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE OGG responded that one percent of state |and
woul d be about 1,004,000 acres. He rem nded the nenbers that
the I and cannot be divided because it is a tenancy in conmon.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked how Representative Ogg cane up wth
one mllion acres.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG t hanked Representative Gara for bringing that
guestion before the commttee because when providing a history
of land grants, he did not nention an inportant point. He
explained that this legislation is different from other |and
grant acts in that it is his desire to fund both the university
and ki ndergarten through 12th grades. He said both of those two
educational entities would benefit from the university's |and
grant. He explained that is the reason the nunber of acres is
hi gher . One other reason the nunber is higher is that when
starting with nothing this endowent is really a pass to the
next generation. Representative Ogg said probably by 2013 there
will be about $3 to $4 million a year. He commented that he
does not have the exact figure, but said it takes a while for
the funds to build up. Representative Ogg used a past exanple
of state oil revenues that began in the 1960s through to the
present where the state has received about $52 billion. That is
the total anount of revenue, he said. If one percent of that
$52 billion had gone into this fund there would be about $520
mllion in the fund. That figure covers a 35-year period, he
added. If it had been managed as the permanent fund has, it
would be a billion dollar account. Five percent of that billion
dollars woul d provide $50 nmillion for education. |If using those
figures into the future, 25 or 30 years down the road, $25
mllion would go to kindergarten through 12th grade and $25
mllion for the university system on an annual basi s.
Representative Ogg said it is not a lot, but it helps.

Number 0196

REPRESENTATI VE GARA commented that there is land that he would
not want to see conveyed away from public ownership. He said he
believes it is amazing that a person can walk up and down a

stream and fish or raft it. He said he believes that anong the
|l ands that are nobst precious to Alaskans are the stream bank
| ands and ot her recreational |ands. The Departnent of Natura

Resources has done a good job over the years in protecting
stream bank | ands, he commented. He asked if Representative Qgg
would be willing to include |anguage that would ensure that the

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -27- March 2, 2004



state would not give away public access to the Kenai River or
ot her cherished public | ands.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG comrented that this kind of |anguage coul d be
included in the bill; however, in doing so it would change the
| egislation from a tenancy in comon to that of an individual
|l and grant to the university. He pointed out that SB 7 actually
provided for specific land to be granted to the wuniversity.
Representative Ogg rem nded the nmenbers that there will be |and
that wll gore your ox; a mner wll have land that will gore
his ox, and that is why this bill does not go in that direction.
This bill leaves the authority to manage the lands with the
State of Alaska in the Departnent of Natural Resources through
the public hearing and public notice process to dispose of and
devel op | and. He added that the point of the |anguage which
relieves the departnment of fiduciary responsibility would ensure
that the university would not cone to the state and argue that
the departnent is not nmanaging the Jland to benefit the
university in the way it w shes.

TAPE 04-13, SIDE A
Nunmber 0095

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked about the |anguage in Section 2,
page 2, lines 26 through 28, where it says:

and any other land owned by the University of Al aska
is not and may not be treated as state public domain
| and.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked Representative Ogg to explain the
nmeani ng of the designation "state public domain |land." He asked
if the lands cannot be treated as public donmain |ands, what
restrictions are put upon them by that cl ause.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG responded that the University of Al aska has
sone |lands already. The university is not under the
jurisdiction of the State of Alaska as to how those |ands which
it possesses are devel oped. He pointed out that is the purpose

of land grants. It allows that the university have an
i ndependent source of income by managing the land to nmake sone
extra noney, he said. Representative Ogg pointed to the
foll owi ng | anguage in bold [on page 2, line 25 and 26]:

| and conveyed to the state and the University of
Al aska under AS 14. 40. 507,

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 28- March 2, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE OGG told the nmenbers that that |anguage will nost
| i kely be del et ed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to page 5 where there is |anguage
about a conveyance and sel ection process. He said he knows the
menbers are aware of the difficulty that was experienced during
the Native and state |and selections process. Representati ve
Seaton asked if it would be acceptable to change the tack to
take one percent of revenues generated from state lands and in
that way avoid the selection process which would be difficult
and expensive.

Number 0331

REPRESENTATI VE OGG replied that what Representative Seaton is
suggesting is exactly what this bill would do. There is no
selection process wth this |egislation, he said. The
uni versity ends up owning one percent of all the land, but it is
an undi vided one percent portion of the |and. In other words,

there is no actual physical land transferred, only a right that
is transferred.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to page 5, lines 11 through 12
whi ch reads:

The comm ssioner of natural resources shall convey to
the University of Al aska..

Nunmber 0426

REPRESENTATIVE OGG added that it also says "the State of
Al aska." He comrented that this |anguage needs to be clarified.
Representative (Ogg explained that the |anguage should say that
the land is conveyed, the university owns one percent, and the
State of Al aska owns 99 percent. The land is owned together, he
st at ed. The tenancy is common. He commented that he has been
talking with Bob Loeffler about clarifying the | anguage.

Nunber 0542

JOSEPH BEEDLE, Vice President for Finance, University of Al aska
Systens, testified in HB 333. He told the nenbers that as a
|l and grant wuniversity they are famliar with the mechanism and
support this endownent to help fund education. Federal | and
grant efforts date back to 1915 and 1929 when the federal
gover nnment attenpted to transfer 360,000 acres to the

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -29- March 2, 2004



uni versity. Unfortunately, |ess than one-third was transferred
because of survey delays and the fact that the Al aska Statehood
Act did not conplete the comm tnent.

MR. BEEDLE said these facts place Alaska last in all |and grant

universities or college states. For exanple, New Mexico
received 1.3 mllion acres, Cklahoma received 1 mllion acres,
New York received 1 mllion acres, Arizona received 850,000

acres, Pennsylvania received 780,000 acres, and the University
of Al aska received in the range of 115,000 acres. He told the
menbers that Alaska is ranked 48th in anmount of land grant
volune received and has not received parity of other states.
M. Beedle told the nenbers that the one percent land grant is a
m ni mal approach because of the shrinkage of revenues avail able
to the university because nuch of the revenue is dedicated, such
as the 25 percent mneral resources revenues going to the Al aska
Per manent Fund.

MR. BEEDLE went on to say:
Referring briefly to the legislative research docunent

projections for new resource revenue, Wwe appreciate
over a 25-year estimated tine period that there could

be $34 billion accunmulated in nominal terns. One
percent for education, $342 nillion over that Ilife
time for an average of $13.7 mllion or a split of
$6.8 [million] with K-12. | would agree that that

could average, in terns of the POW approach, $15 to
$20 mllion in the year 2030. So |ooking out 25 years
from now, we could, in fact, have earnings off of
t hose endowed proceeds of approxinmately between $15
and $20 mllion.

| would note that the backup schedules provided by
| egislative research [Legislative Research Report
Nunber  04. 176, dated March 1, 2004] from the
Department of Revenue shows that it is 2012 when you
assunme all four: ANVWR, Beaufort Sea, Central North
Slope, NPRA ... all four have to work. Then the gas
line has to come on for us to reach $100 million
(indisc.) if all those things work.

Under the concept of $100 mllion, if | was asked to
do a fiscal note for the wuniversity, | would be
assumng then $100 mllion to the state. And agai n,
that does not start to occur under this Departnent of
Revenue forecast until 2012, $100 mllion, K-12 gets

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 30- March 2, 2004



$500, 000 and the wuniversity gets $500, 000. So we
assune the streamis static, a stream of $500,000 per
year. Because of prudent investnents and percentage
of market draws, we only have $5,000 at the end of the
second year to spend because you would assune 20
percent, so one-fifth, five years averaging of the
$500, 000 of the five percent earnings. So in year sSiXx
we would have that first contribution where all the
noney was invested, $500,000 per year for five years,

equals $2.5 mllion. At year six then that average
for the five years would be $1.5 [million], so we
would receive $75,000 in year six. In year ten,
assumng again, the mnimalistic, $100 mllion per

year at one percent to K-12 and the university, we
woul d enjoy $200,000 per vyear in year 11. So it
certainly pales in conparison to our total needs for
state general funds and it would beg the question: is
one percent, in fact, enough. Should it be raised to
say maybe four percent or so to roughly the equival ent
of sonet hi ng nmeani ngful .

Number 1018

MR. BEEDLE told the nenbers that the wuniversity currently
admnisters its own |and grant developnent and conversion
process, but has no objection to having the Departnent of
Nat ural Resources administer the universities tenancy in conmon
ownership proposed under this bill. Currently the wuniversity
has a land grant trust endowrent which is in statute and it has
used the percent of narket value (POW) process since 1996, so
five percent of the average five year balance is paid out, he
sai d. M. Beedle summarized his coments by saying the
uni versity supports HB 333 and offered to work with the sponsor
to address sone of the technical aspects of the bill

Number 1112

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if the state kindergarten through 12th
grade and university budgets are approximately $1 billion.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG responded that it is close to that.
REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked what the benefit is in obtaining funds

t hrough revenue of state |ands, as opposed to just requesting it
fromthe general fund.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -31- March 2, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE OGG replied that the bill recognizes a historica
trend in this country that supports land grant universities to
provi de an independent revenue source. This independent revenue
provi des sone independence from the political process. Not a
lot, he said, but a little bit. He said that another reason to
pursue this is that this is a federal program that was
established and it is fulfilling a prom se nade to the state, as
the university lands were included in the 104 mllion acres
[given to the state by the federal governnent].

Number 1269

REPRESENTATI VE OGG told the nenbers that when the governor was a
U.S. Senator he put in matching land grant bills, that if the
state gave a grant to the university, then the federa
government would "pony up." What happened then was that the
sane "oxen were being gored." If the state does this and
fulfills the state |land grant, then the U S. Senators could | ook
at this and say here is a way to fulfill the federal prom se for
the land grant. He added that the anmpunt of noney that would
flow from the federal side far exceeds what the state nonies
woul d be.

Number 1314

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked M. Loeffler if the state |ands
managed by the Departnent of Natural Resources would be managed
any differently than it is today if this legislation were to
pass.

Nunber 1325

BOB LOEFFLER, Director, Division of Mning, Land, and Wter,
Departnent of Natural Resources, testified on HB 333 and
answered questions from the nenbers. M. Loeffler responded
that it would be fair to say that there would not be changes.
He added that there have been sone errors in drafting the bil
whi ch are being addressed. He explained that as long as those
errors are corrected, it is transparent to the departnent as to
where the revenue goes. The intention of the bill is for the
departnment to mamintain all of the managenent authority. M.
Loeffler comented that this is really a policy decision for the
comm ttee.

Nunber 1424

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -32- March 2, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Loeffler if this land grant
i ncl udes subsurface rights, because that is where the noney is
gener at ed. He said his wunderstanding is that the Al aska
St at ehood Bill provides that iif the state transfers the
subsurface rights [of state lands], then the federal governnent
t akes them back

MR. LCEFFLER pointed out that this bill would provide one
percent of the revenue for everything. The land is stil
managed by the departnent and the revenue still goes to the

state. He told Representative Seaton that he could contact the
Attorney Ceneral's Ofice for verification, but said he does not
believe that is a problem

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON replied that he would appreciate hearing
back on this point.

CHAI R GATTO announced that HB 333 would be held in commttee.

HB 405- SCHOOL PERFORMANCE DESI GNATI ON/ REPORT

Nunmber 1472

CHAI R GATTO announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 405, "An Act relating to reports on school and
school district performance; and relating to accountability of
public schools and school districts; and providing for an
effective date.”

Nunmber 1498

REPRESENTATI VE OGG noved to adopt HB 405, 23-LS1533\A, as the
wor ki ng docunent. There being no objection, HB 405, version A,
was before the House Special Commttee on Education as the
wor ki ng docunent .

Number 1535

CHAIR GATTO Al aska State Legislature, testified as sponsor of
HB 405. He explained that he needs to adopt sone conceptual
anendnents to address drafting errors.

Nunber 1571

LES MORSE, Director, Assessnent and Accountability, Departnent

of Education and Early Devel opnent, testified on HB 405. He
explained that the one point in this legislation that needs to

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 33- March 2, 2004



be changed is AS 14.03.123(a), on page 3, lines 13 and 14, which
r eads:

designation of distinguished, successful, deficient,
or in crisis to each public school and schoo
district.

MR MORSE said this legislation was intended to renove that
| anguage and have one accountability system that would be in
conpliance with the federal requirenents.

Nunmber 1603

CHAIR GATTO told the nenbers that the bill's |anguage would
align state requirenents with federal requirenents so that two
standards do not have to be net.

Nunmber 1614

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON noved conceptual Anendnent 1 to address
changes in HB 405 |anguage to align state standards in statute
to nmeet federal standards, as those in the No Child Left Behind
Act. There being no objection, Anendnent 1 was adopt ed.

[ HB 405 was hel d over. ]

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Comrmittee on Education neeting was adjourned at 1:00
p. m

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 34- March 2, 2004



